# CALAVERAS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT P.O. Box 788 San Andreas, CA 95249 MINUTES BOARD OF TRUSTEES June 25, 2013

The meeting of the Calaveras Unified School District Board of Trustees was called to order at the Calaveras High School Library at 4:30 p.m.

MEMBERS PRESENT:	Karan Bowsher Zerrall McDaniel Evan Garamendi	Gregory Gustafson Sherri Reusche
MEMBERS ABSENT:	None	
STAFF PRESENT:	Mark Campbell Titia Ashby Jan Kendall Ann Robinson Kathy Campbell Kathy Risso Nichole Markle	Liz Stanko Shirley Bell Lisa McInturf Ric Stitt Terri Tanner Robert Wise Terri Rae Henderson

OTHERS:

**Students and Community Members** 

### 1. Call to Order

- 2. <u>Roll Call</u> All Board Members were present and a quorum was established.
- 3. <u>Approval of the Agenda</u> The June 25, 2013 agenda was approved.

### 4. Announcement of Closed Session Items

a) Conference with Labor Negotiator: Mark Campbell in regard to negotiations with CSEA (Gov. Code 54957.6)

Any individual who requires disability-related accommodations, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in the board meeting, should contact the Superintendent in writing. (Gov. code 54953.2, 54954.1)

Members of the Public may request an item be placed on the agenda. The agenda request form is available on the CUSD website, <u>www.calaveras.k12.ca.us</u>, under forms, public. Agenda requests must be received at the District Office no later than 9:00 a.m., Monday, one week before the Board meeting. Forms can also be requested by calling (209) 754-2300.

All Board meetings are tape recorded and kept for permanent Board records.

CUSD BOARD MINUTES June 25, 2013

- b) Conference with Labor Negotiator: Mark Campbell in regard to negotiations with CUEA (Gov. Code 54957.6)
- c) Conference with Labor Negotiator: Mark Campbell in regard to negotiations with Management/Confidential/Supervisory (Gov. Code 54957.6)
- d) Conference with Labor Negotiator: Mark Campbell in regard to negotiations with CASTA (Gov. Code 54957.6)
- e) To Consider the Appointment, Employment, Evaluation of Performance, Discipline, or dismissal of a Public Employee (Gov. Code 54957)
  - 1. Request for Unpaid Leave of Absence Certificated Employee
- f) Student Discipline Matters (Gov. Code 54954.5)
  - 1. AHP 2012/13-05

# 5. Public Comments

At this time, visitors may comment on closed session items appearing on the agenda. This is not the time for discussion or deliberation nor can action be taken by the Trustees or Superintendent unless the matter is placed on a subsequent agenda. Individual speakers shall be allowed three minutes to address the Board on each closed agenda item (BB 9323). The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes. If visitors wish to address issues listed on the agenda, they may do so at the time the item is addressed by the Board. Conduct of Hearing Session/Public Forum will be as follows, per Calaveras Unified School District Board Bylaw #9322.

# 6. <u>Closed Session</u>

- 7. <u>Reconvene to Open Session</u>
- 8. Pledge of Allegiance/Roll Call
- 9. <u>Report of Action taken in Closed Session</u>
  - 1. The Board voted 5-0 to grant an unpaid leave of absence for the 2013/14 school year to a certificated employee.
  - 2. AHP 2012/13-05: The Board voted 5-0 to approve the Administrative Hearing Panel's recommendation of a suspended expulsion from CUSD through January 13, 2014. The student is in violation of Education Code 48900 (f) and 48900 (k).

# 10. <u>Celebrations, Recognition and Announcements</u> - No item presented

# 11. Superintendent's Comments

It was a great close to the school year. He is looking ahead to next year, which begins in 5 weeks. We had approximately 260 students walk across our stage, sending them off with diplomas into their next phase of life. They were tremendous ceremonies. Now we are looking forward to next year, which is in about 5 weeks. We expect approximately 230 Kindergarteners and a group of

Preschoolers coming into our district. Staff is working hard to make sure everything is in place for day one.

# 12. Public Comments

At this time, visitors may address issues that do not appear on the agenda. This is not the time for discussion or deliberation nor can action be taken by the Trustees or Superintendent unless the matter is placed on a subsequent agenda. Individual speakers shall be allowed three minutes to address the Board on each agenda or non-agenda item (BB 9323). The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes. If visitors wish to address issues listed on the agenda, they may do so at the time the item is addressed by the Board. Conduct of Hearing Session/Public Forum will be as follows, per Calaveras Unified School District Board Bylaw #9322.

Retired teacher Jim Pesout addressed the board and other attendees to inform them of the important of students providing community service. He would like to see our students recognized for community service at school and at the time of their graduation. He said colleges look at students' community service records when considering acceptance to their schools. Amador has someone at their district office who tracks students' community service hours. There are so many opportunities out there for organizations to work with us. We could even involve our very young students.

Marti Crane, Director of the Calaveras Volunteer Center, said she, Zerrall McDaniel and Jim Pesout have had discussions in the past about volunteer opportunities. The Volunteer Center has a website and they would like the youth to design and drive a section of the website for youth volunteer opportunities. She discussed the many projects ideas they have for the center.

Mike Rouke has a son at San Jose State who is telling his younger son how important it is to be involved in community services and how it can make the difference when colleges make acceptance decisions.

Terri Tanner, Career Counselor at Calaveras High School, says getting our youth involved in community services is a fantastic idea. The students come in weekly to find out who they need to contact to get involved in community services activities. Recognizing their efforts would be a benefit to our students.

President Bowsher said students getting involved in community service and having it become part of our curriculum is in the Board's long term goals.

# 13. Action or Items Removed from the Consent Agenda

Mr. Gustafson would like item g (3) removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.

Motion: Reusche Second: McDaniel Vote: 5-0

### 14. CONSENT AGENDA:

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion. The Superintendent or a Board member may request that an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted on separately.

Motion: Garamendi Second: Reusche Vote: 5-0

- a. <u>Approval of Minutes</u> 1. May 14, 2013
- b. <u>Routine Personnel Report , June 25, 2013</u> Amended to add D. Mayberry

### c. Approval, Vendor Warrant Listing

The vendor warrant listing from April 16 to June 18, 2013 is presented for approval. (A copy of this listing is available at the District Office or linked to this agenda on our website at www.calaveras.k12.ca.us)

- d. <u>Approval of Donations</u> See attached list.
- e. Approval of Bond Disbursements No item presented
- f. <u>Service Contracts Under \$500 Approved by the Business Department</u> The report of Service Contracts Less Than \$500 approved May 14 through June 14, 2013, by the Business Department is presented for Board review.

# g. Approve Special Contract Services with:

- <u>BK Consult</u> Babs Kavanaugh to provide a CUSD Board Governance Workshop on July 24, 2013, including a review of documents, telephone interviews, meeting process/facilitation and summary notes. The cost is \$2,000 funded through the General Fund.
- 2) <u>San Joaquin County Office of Education</u> to provide professional development on the transition to the Math Common Core Standards. The cost is \$9,000 funded through Title II.

**3)** <u>Speech Therapy Associates</u> – to provide speech-language pathology services for CUSD students, including assessments, case management and speech therapy for the 2013/14 fiscal year. The total cost is estimated to be \$150,000 funded through Special Education.

Motion: Reusche Second: McDaniel Vote: 5-0
--

### **CONSENT AGENDA - CONTINUED**

- 4) <u>Dr. Robert Hoffman, OD</u> to provide vision screening services for CUSD students in grades K, 3, 6 and 9 during the 2013/14 school year. The cost is not to exceed \$3,500, funded through the General Fund.
- h. <u>Approval, Resolution 2012/13-26, In the Matter of Property and Liability Coverage for the</u> 2013/14 School Year

Approval is recommended for Resolution 2012/13-26, In the Matter of Property and Liability Coverage for the 2013/14 School Year. We are changing insurance carriers and the resolution is required to activate our contract with Self Insured Schools of California (SISC), effective July 1, 2013.

### **15. <u>PERSONNEL</u> (Mark Campbell, Superintendent)**

- a. <u>Certificated Report</u> No item presented
- b. Classified Report

Terri Henderson attended in Pat Jackson's place. They will not have a meeting until school resumes.

### c. All Personnel

### d. Classified Personnel

1. Adoption, Resolution 2012/13-28, In the Matter of Reduction of Classified School Services for the 2013/14 School Year

It is recommended the Board adopt Resolution 2012/13-28, In the Matter of Reduction of Classified School Services **effective December 20, 2013**. Due to the loss of funding, the San Andreas After-School Program will close on December 20, 2013.

Eliminate: San Andreas El	ementary Child Dev	velopment Program
Site Supervisor	PSN 2750	6.0 Hours M-Th, 7.0 Hours Friday, 220 Days
Assistant	PSN <del>2755-</del> 2752	4.0 Hours M-F, <del>185</del> 200 Days
Reduction of Days		
Child Dev. Instructor	PSN 2763	Reduce from 220 to 200 Days

Motion: Garamendi Second: McDaniel Vote: 5-0

# 2. Adoption, Resolution 2012/13-29, In the Matter of Reduction of Classified School Services for the 2013/14 School Year

It is recommended the Board adopt Resolution 2012/13-29, In the Matter of Reduction of Classified School Services **effective August 30, 2013**. Due to the loss of funding, it is necessary to reduce the After-School Program at Rail Road Flat Elementary School. Additionally, because the Transportation Department is adequately staffed with bus drivers, there is a need to reduce the services of van drivers.

**Eliminate Position** 

Van Driver	PSN 2628 (Transp)	7.25 Hours M-F
------------	-------------------	----------------

Reduction of Hours		
Child Dev. Manager	PSN 2780 (RRF)	.50 Hour M-Th.
Child Dev. Aide	PSN 2782 (RRF)	2.0 Hours M-Th., and 1.0 Hour Friday

Bobbie Jo Oliver said she is the van driver whose position is being laid off. She said the position should be reclassified and according to the contract the incumbent would have the right to serve in that position and a layoff can only occur due to lack of work or lack of funds.

Ms. Stanko clarified to the Board the van driver position is not covered by the CSEA contract. At the time the district hired van drivers there were not an adequate number of bus drivers and now there are. Bus drivers have the first right of all routes. They worked with the CSEA Field Rep to sort through all of these details prior to the layoff.

CSEA President Terri Henderson said there used to be a shortage of Bus Drivers and we hired van drivers to transport students outside the district. Now there is no shortage of Bus Drivers.

Motion: Garamendi Second: Reusche Vote: 5-0

# e. Certificated Personnel

- <u>Approval of Calaveras Unified Educators Association Salary Schedules</u> Board approval is recommended for the CUEA Salary Schedules, effective July 1, 2013.
  Certificated Salary Schedule
  - CUEA Sports Stipend Schedule
  - Certificated Hourly Schedule
  - Academic Stipend Schedule

Motion: McDaniel Second: Gustafson Vote: 5-0

### f. Management/Confidential/Supervisory

### 1. Approval to Hire a Maintenance & Operations Supervisor

The District has completed its search for a Maintenance & Operations Supervisor and is recommending Joseph Cruz for the position, effective July 8, 2013.

Mr. Cruz was at the meeting and was introduced.

Motion: Garamendi Second: Reusche Vote: 5-0

### 2. Management Promotion

Judy Mossa is being recommended for a promotion to Food Services Supervisor effective July 1, 2013.

Motion: McDaniel Second: Reusche Vote: 5-0

### 3. Approval of the Management, Supervisor, and Confidential Salary Schedule

Board approval is recommended for the Management, Supervisor and Confidential Salary Schedule effective July 1, 2013. Two updates have been made adding back the Director of Curriculum and Instruction position, Range 2 (a), and the Food Services Supervisor position, Range 22.

Motion: McDaniel Second: Garamendi Vote: 5-0

### 4. Approval, Superintendent's Contract for 2013-2016

It is requested the Board approve the Superintendent's Contract for an additional three years effective July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2016.

Motion: Garamendi Second: McDaniel Vote: 5-0

### 16. CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

### a. Approval, Single Plan for Student Achievement

All schools in conjunction with the School Site Councils, have completed their Single Plan for Student Achievement for the 2013/14 school year. These are revisions only; not new plans. (A copy is electronically linked to the agenda at www.calaveras.k12.ca.us.) Alt Ed MHE TMS CHS RRF VSE JLE SAE WPE

Motion: Gustafson Second: Reusche Vote: 5-0

# b. <u>Approval, Spring 2013 Consolidated Application for Funding, Categorical Aid</u> <u>Programs</u>

Approval is requested for the Application for Consolidated Funding for Categorical Aid, Spring 2013. (*A copy is electronically linked to the agenda at www.calaveras.k12.ca.us.*)

Motion: Garamendi Second: Reusche Vote: 5-0

# 17. BUSINESS

# OPEN PUBLIC HEARING AT: 6:40 p.m.

# 1. AB1200 for CASTA

Any citizen may appear before the Board to provide comment on the approval of the AB1200 Fiscal Disclosure.

Approve a salary and benefit agreement with the Calaveras Unified School District and the Calaveras Area Substitute Teachers' Association.

# 2. 2013/2014 Calaveras Unified School District Budget

It is required in the budget adoption process that we open the 2012/2013 budget to a public hearing.

Titia Ashby, Director of Fiscal Services, gave a Powerpoint presentation on the 2013/14 budget. We are in declining enrollment and have been for the past 5 years. CUSD is paid by each student who attends, per day, or ADA, average daily attendance. The state is holding a deficit factor back due to the economic conditions which is about 19 cents on the dollar. Our budget is \$23,891,605 in revenues. The largest portion of our budget goes to teachers' salaries, then support staff and then employee benefits. Other expenses are books and supplies, services, COP payments. Our Special Education expense has gone up. The passthrough for our SPED funds has been reduced by 54% by the county and has been filled with our general fund. Our Child Development fund ran short. We are losing our federal funding for Preschool and have to work closely to revamp the Preschool program to make sure it is self-funding. Our board has decided to fund Deferred Maintenance, which is flexible. We continue to deficit spend. We are looking at increase class size in 2014/15. The state requires a reserve of 3%. In 2013/14 we will have 6.3% in reserve, and if we make the cuts planned in 2014/15 we estimate a reserve of 6.15% in 2014/15. The Governor will most likely pass a budget in July that will introduce the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF). This may give us more money but it will take away all categorical funding, so in the end, we made lose funding. The budget is a fluid document and we will have to wait to see what the impact will be once the budget is approved by the Governor. We still continue to maintain a list of reductions that will need to be implemented in future years, including music and sports as well as staff reductions. We hope the economy is improving and families move back to Calaveras County so we can begin experiencing a growth in our enrollment. There are many unknowns, so we must prepare for the worst and hope for the best. The PowerPoint presentation will be posted on our website.

Mr. Campbell said we've done a tremendous job to hang onto our programs. If conditions change for the better, our list of reductions will get smaller. If things do not improve, we must implement reductions. We have to show that we are compliant 3 years out. Of course we are hoping our list of cuts gets significantly shorter.

Mr. Spellman, Supervisor/Calaveras County, said the county passed a reserve of 2.2% by a 4 to 1 vote because they wanted to preserve programs and jobs. He believes that CUSD should reduce our reserve to the state-mandated 3% to preserve programs and jobs.

# CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING AT: 7:15 p.m.

# a. Certify the AB1200 for the Calaveras Area Substitute Teachers' Assocation

Motion to Certify the AB1200: Reusche Second: Garamendi Vote: 5-0 b. <u>Adoption of the 2013/2014 Calaveras Unified School District Budget, Criteria and Standard</u> It is requested the Board adopt the 2013/2014 budget.

Motion: McDaniel Second: Reusche Vote: 4-1 (Gustafson Abstain)

Mr. Gustafson abstains because he did not have enough time to read through the budget, as it was just received right before closed session this evening.

There were public comments about the time of receiving the budget. The board said the Fiscal Director had given the Board information throughout the process of developing the budget, spreadsheets, interim reports and it remains a fluid document, subject to revisions throughout the year.

c. <u>Adoption Resolution 2013/2014-27</u>, <u>Authorization to Establish Temporary Interfund Transfers</u> of Special or Restricted Fund Monies

This resolution would establish temporary borrowing between funds in order to close Fiscal Year 2012/13.

Motion: Garamendi Second: Reusche Vote: 5-0

d. Change of Signatories on Calaveras Unified School District Bank Accounts for 2013-14

Board approval is requested to authorize Superintendent Mark Campbell to approve the required changes in bank signatories with written documentation. This authorization is valid July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014.

Motion: Reusche Second: McDaniel Vote: 5-0

# e. Approval Proposal with Sierra Clean Water Services

Board approval is recommended to enter into a month-to-month contract with Sierra Clean Water Services to provide waste water treatment and operation services three days a week for our plants located at Jenny Lind Elementary School and Toyon Middle School.

Motion: Garamendi Second: McDaniel Vote: 5-0

### f. <u>Approval of Contract with Condor Earth Technologies, Inc.</u>

It is recommended the Board approve a contract with Condor Earth Technologies, Inc. to complete work needed in order to meet the requirements of the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central Valley Region, regarding the repair of the wastewater pond located at Toyon Middle School. The cost of these services will be approximately \$3,500. An additional cost estimate will need to be provided regarding repair construction observations and development of documentation based on those observations that the Regional Water Quality Control Board will require be submitted to verify the completion of the repair. Once the work plan has been developed, the cost estimated can be completed for the work.

### **BUSINESS - CONTINUED**

g. <u>Adoption, Resolution 2012/13-30, To Certify the Approval of the Governing Board to Enter</u> <u>into this Transaction with the California Department of Education for the Propose of Providing</u> <u>Child Care and Development Service and to Authorize the Designated Personnel to Sign</u> <u>Contract Documents for the Fiscal Year 2013/14.</u>

This Resolution names the Superintendent, Director of Fiscal Services and Director of Curriculum & Instruction to sign documents with the California Department of Education for the Preschools located at Jenny Lind Elementary School, San Andreas Elementary School, Valley Springs Elementary School and West Point Elementary School.

Motion: Garamendi Second: Reusche Vote: 5-0

### h. Facilities Lease, Amended, with the Volunteer Center of Calaveras County

It is recommended the Board approve the amended Facilities Lease Agreement with the Volunteer Center. The term has been amended to until such time as the VCCC no longer operates said premises.

Motion: McDaniel Second: Garamendi Vote: 5-0

# i. Performing Arts Facility Concept Approval

It is recommended the Board approve proceeding with the development and design of the Performing Arts Facility. This would result in a future vote on a final design.

There were many community members who were proponents of building a Performing Arts Facility. Some of them, along with the CUSD performing arts staff, wanted to have more input as to the design for particular types of performances (music, drama, and dance). There were other community members who believed the bond money should be spent at improving our facilities, including the Toyon kitchen, security, classroom modulars. It was pointed out that the bond list states not all items on the list need to be completed, as the board will have discretion on the items and priority of such.

Mrs. Garamendi is concerned about whether or not we could afford to maintain the building. And she is concerned about the fiscal impact to stay within the \$3 million range.

Mr. Gustafson is extremely concerned about money and how our bond money was spent. He says there is only \$42,332 in the bond fund and the other \$3.7 million is in our school facilities fund, so how can we build the facility with our bond funds?

Mr. Campbell said if the board approves the PAF, we will have a list of items for deferred maintenance. He also said we are moving forward with the Toyon kitchen and paying for part of it with food service funds.

Mr. Gustafson is concerned that we may have to cut music and sport and wants a guarantee we will not do that. Mr. Campbell said he cannot provide such a guarantee, given the unknown state of the economy and school funding from the state of California.

Mr. Campbell asked whether or not the Board chooses to move forward on the concept on the PAF. Between now and the next Board meeting on July 23 he will work to gather input on the design, but he will not allow the design to impact the dollars. If something needs to get placed into the design, another thing will have to be removed. He will make sure everybody can see the design.

Mr. Gustafson again expressed his concern about the costs to build and making sure we don't have to go out for another COP. He wants to make sure we can take care of our facilities.

Mrs. Bowsher expressed her excitement with the design of the thrust theatre. Mr. Stitt worked with architect Mitch McAllister on the design.

Retired performing arts teacher Lynn Hjelmervik was very excited that our program has grown so much over the years. She was with CUSD from back in the 70's. She believes the bond was passed solely because most supporters wanted a Performing Arts Facility, as did many of the community members present who helped to market the bond by calling on voters.

County Supervisor Cliff Edson said it is a tough decision for the board. The bond list has many different items on it. He began music in third grade and it taught him a lot. He would like to see something at this end of the county rather than going to Bret Harte. It can help produce revenues for us. The Town Hall rents out almost every weekend and is starting to pay for itself. He urged the board to look at the list and decide what will be best for the school district and community and best for the return on profit.

President Bowsher announced she had allowed the public comments to extend way beyond the 20 time allotment.

Motion: Reusche Secon

Second: McDaniel

Vote: 3 Ayes 1 Abstain (Gustafson) 1 Nay (Garamendi)

# **18. POLICIES AND REGULATIONS**

# **Policy Overview**

- a. First Reading Board Policies & Bylaws
  - AR 3350Travel and ReimbursementBP 5113.1Chronic Absence and TruancyAR 5113.1Chronic Absence and TruancyAR 52125Student RecordsAR 5141.31ImmunizationsBB 9322Agenda/Meeting MaterialsBB 9323.2Actions by the Board

### POLICIES AND REGULATIONS - CONTINUED

с.	Second Readings/Adoptions	
	BP 1250	Visitors/Outsiders
	BP 3260	Fees and Charges
	AR 3260	Fees and Charges
	BP 5145.6	Parental Notifications
	BP 6170.1	First Year Kindergarten

Motion: Gustafson Second: Garamendi Vote: 5-0

### Addendum:

- 17. Business
  - j. <u>Agreement for Special Contract Services Barron's Floor Covering & Design</u> Board approval was requested to enter into Special Contract Services with Barron's Floor Covering

& Design to install Abbey Commercial LVT plank flooring in the Police Science Room at CHS. The cost is \$6704.98, funded through ROP.

# Motion: Garamendi Second: McDaniel Vote: 5-0

### **19. Calendar of Events**

DATE	EVENT
Summer Break	June 13 through July 28, 2013
Extended School Year Summer School for Special	June 17 through July 12, 2013
Education	
July 4	Holiday – No ESY – Business Offices Closed
July 24, 2013	CHS Roundup – 11:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
July 24, 2013	Toyon Warrior Welcome – 1:00 to 5:00 p.m.
July 25, 2013	New Teacher Orientation, 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.,
	District Office
July 29	First Day of School
Back-to-School Nights	
August 1	West Point Elementary – 6:00-7:00 p.m.
	San Andreas Elementary – 6:00 p.m.
	Valley Springs Elementary – 6:00-7:00 p.m.
August 7	Toyon Middle School – 6:00-7:00 p.m.
	Mokelumne Hill Elementary – 6:30-7:30 p.m.
	1

August 13	Rail Road Flat Elementary – 6:00 p.m.
(Jenny Lind Elementary and CHS dates will be announced at a later date.)	

### 20. Future Agenda Items

### 21. Comments from Board Members

### Sherri Reusche

Mrs. Reusche thanked the board and said it was not an easy decision. She appreciates all of the Board members for their camaraderie and working so hard on behalf of the district.

### Zerrall McDaniel

Mrs. McDaniel thanked everyone for coming to the meeting and said it was important to hear from everyone. She knows it was difficult on the board and the community. She is happy the way the vote went but understands the other side.

### **Gregory Gustafson**

Mr. Gustafson says he abstained twice and don't want to seem wishy-washy, like he hasn't done his homework, but he toiled with the decision. He is all in favor of the Performing Arts but since he's been on the Board he has been looking at the numbers and books and funds and transfers. He knows he's the new guy and not up to speed on it all yet and he just can't figure where the money is coming from. We're speaking of deficits and lower revenues coming in and cutting programs so that's where he was coming from. He wants us to understand that he was trying to think it all through. It's really tough. He thanked everyone for coming.

# Evan Garamendi

She complimented us on our graduations. She thought they were appropriate and dignified. She was happy to be part of it and very proud of our kids. She thanked everyone for coming tonight. It was a very difficult night for her. She complimented Shirley on the format of the agenda.

### Karan Bowsher

Mrs. Bowsher thanked everyone for being there and especially the younger members because they are the reason why the Board is here. She gave a large thank you to the bus drivers and Transportation Department for their help with Grad Night. They gave rides to area schools. Although Grad Night helps prevents drunk driving the kids are so sleepy when they drive home it's certainly nice to know they are safe now because of the volunteerism of our bus drivers, the Grad Night Committee and the District for donating the buses and fuel to keep our kids safe. She thanked everyone for the wonderful graduation ceremonies and the events that took place. Her daughter graduated from high school, her son from UC Davis and then he got married, so she's been very busy.

CUSD BOARD MINUTES June 25, 2013

# 22. Next Meeting/Adjournment

The next regular meeting of the CUSD Board is scheduled for Tuesday, July, 23 2013. Closed Session begins at 4:30 p.m. Open Session begins at 5:30 p.m.

There will be a special Board Governance Workshop on Wednesday, August 24, beginning at 10:00 a.m., in the District Office Board Room.

Mark Campbell, Superintendent By Shirley Bell, Administrative Assistant